
 
 
 

AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

Planning and Zoning Commission  
June 14, 2018 

7:00 PM 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas – 75002 

 
Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Planning and Zoning Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 14, 2018 at 
7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the 
City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Call to Order 
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Regular Agenda 
 
1. Consider approval of the minutes of the April 12, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting.  (Planning and Zoning Coordinator Donna Bradshaw) 
 
2. Consider the request by Steve Lenart on behalf of Liberty Bankers Insurance Company for 

an amended final plat for Lakeview Downs, a tract of land being 148.812 acres of land 
located in the Thomas James Survey ABS# 477, and the Montgomery Birch Survey ABS# 
115, located at the intersection of Snider Lane and East Lucas Road consisting of 116 lots. 
(Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
3. Consider the request by Cliff Gillespie on behalf of Lucas Village I, LLC for final plat 

approval for Lot 1, Block A of the Lucas Plaza Addition located at 501 Angel Parkway.  
(Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
 



4. Consider the request by Jacobs Engineering Group on behalf of Saint Paul Inspiration LLC 
for approval of a preliminary plat for a tract of land being part of the L. Farmer Survey 
ABS# 334, and the O. Shelby Survey ABS# 799 being 115.25 acres in the City of Lucas 
ETJ creating 296 lots.  (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  

Executive Session 
The Planning and Zoning Commission may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of 
the Texas Government Code. 
 
5. Executive Session:  An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
6. Adjournment. 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002-7651 and on the City’s website at 
www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 pm, June 8, 2018. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Donna Bradshaw 
Planning Coordinator 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations 
for persons attending public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be 
directed to Donna Bradshaw at 972-912-1206 or by email at dbradshaw@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. 
 
 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

June 14, 2018 

Requester: Planning Coordinator Donna Bradshaw  

 

Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of the minutes of the April 12, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting.  
                                     
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the April 12, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the minutes of the April 12, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting.  
 
 

 
 
  

 

 

 



1 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  A p r i l  1 2 ,  2 0 1 8  
 

City of  Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
April 12, 2018 

7:00 PM 
City Hall – 665 Country Club Road – Lucas. Texas 

MINUTES 

Call to Order  
 
Chairman Rusterholtz called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 
It was determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell 
phones and the Commission recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Commissioners Present: Staff Present: 
Chairman Peggy Rusterholtz City Manager Joni Clarke  
Vice Chairman David Keer 
Commissioner Andre Guillemaud 
Commissioner Scott Sperling  
Commissioner Joe Williams 
Alternate Commissioner Tim Johnson 
Alternate Commissioner Tommy Tolson 
 
 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
City Attorney Julie Dosher 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Planning Coordinator Donna Bradshaw 
 
City Council Liaison Absent:  
Mayor Jim Olk  

 
Regular Agenda  
 
1. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 8, 2018 Planning and Zoning 

Commission meeting.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Vice Chairman Keer, seconded by Commissioner Guillemaud, 

to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 
vote.  

 
2. Consider the request by Rutledge Haggard on behalf of the Steven W. Hendrick Trust 

for a preliminary plat for a parcel of land being 73.4268 acres of land located on the 
north and south sides of Blondy Jhune Road and east of Country Club Road, being 
part of the Peter Lucas Survey, A-537; J.W. Kerby Survey, A-506; James Grayum Survey, 
A-506, Tracts 1, 2, & 3.  

 
A presentation was given by Director Services Director Joe Hilbourn explaining the details of the 
preliminary plat, noting that the property was currently zoned R-2, contained approximately 73.35 
acres, and proposed 34 new residential lots.  
 



2 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  A p r i l  1 2 ,  2 0 1 8  
 

Commissioner Guillemaud asked for clarification regarding the realignment of Blondy Jhune Road 
proposed with the preliminary plat.  
 
Mr. Hilbourn explained that the Blondy Jhune Road realignment had changed from its original 
location to be in accordance with the traffic impact analysis conducted and provides the best line of 
site at the intersection of Blondy Jhune and Country Club Road.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Commissioner Williams, seconded by Commissioner 

Guillemaud to approve  the preliminary plat for a parcel of land being 73.4268 acres 
of land located on the north and south sides of Blondy Jhune Road and east of 
Country Club Road, being part of the Peter Lucas Survey, A-537; J.W. Kerby Survey, 
A-506; James Grayum Survey, A-506, Tracts 1, 2, & 3.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
3. Consider the request by Cliff Gillespie on behalf of Lucas Village I, LLC for final plat 

approval for Lot 1, Block A of the Lucas Plaza Addition located at 501 Angel Parkway.   
 
Chairman Rusterholtz read an email from the applicant requesting the agenda item be withdrawn. 
 
4. Discuss the request by Grace Church to amend the City’s Code of Ordinances, 

Section 3.16.008 Prohibited Signs, to allow an electronic sign for the property located 
at 2005 Estates Parkway.   

 
Mr. Hilbourn reviewed with the Commission electronic sign requirements from various surrounding 
cities.  He noted that most cities the size of Lucas did not allow for electronic signage in their city.  
 
City Attorney, Julie Dosher explained that sign content could not be regulated, and that if the City 
amended their sign regulations to limit electronic signage to only schools and churches, the City 
would be required to justify why signage was not permitted elsewhere. 
 
Chairman Rusterholtz, Commissioners Tolson, Sperling and Williams noted that they were not in 
favor of approving electronic signage in the City.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Commissioner Williams, seconded by Commissioner Sperling, 

to maintain the City’s existing sign ordinance with no additional amendments. The 
motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
5. Executive Session. 
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting.  
 
6. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Williams, seconded by Commissioner Sperling 

to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Peggy Rusterholtz, Chairman     Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

June 14, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by Steve Lenart on behalf of Liberty Bankers Insurance Company for an 
amended final plat for Lakeview Downs, a tract of land being 148.812 acres of land located in the 
Thomas James Survey ABS# 477, and the Montgomery Birch Survey ABS# 115, located at the 
intersection of Snider Lane and East Lucas Road consisting of 116 lots.  
 
Background Information  
 
When this project was initially approved, the City of Lucas was a General Law city.  At that 
time, final plats were approved prior to the start of construction and there was no preliminary 
plat process. This parcel of land currently has an approved final plat and is located in the City’s 
ETJ. As part of approval for the amended final plat, the developer has submitted an application 
for annexation. During the construction process there were changes made to the proposed plat 
necessitating the need for an amended final plat. The road right-of-way was reduced from a 70- 
foot right-of-way with a 20-foot utility easement on one side, to a 25-foot right-of-way with a 
30-foot utility and access easement on both sides. When this project was approved our minimum 
permitted right-of-way was 70 feet. The equestrian trails were changed to access easements and 
placed on all lots adjacent to the road, and the new location for the trails has been coordinated 
with the President of the Trinity Trail Preservation Association. All of these amendments are 
normal occurrences that took place due to the natural lay of the land during the development 
process.  
 
These types of items take place during development and is the reason we require a preliminary 
plat, and a final plat upon completion. The amended final plat identifies the necessary corrections 
that took place during the construction process.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Amended Final Plat 
2. Location Map 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval as presented. 
 
 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

June 14, 2018 
 

 
 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the  amended final plat for Lakeview Downs, a tract of land being 
148.812 acres of land located in the Thomas James Survey ABS# 477, and the Montgomery Birch 
Survey ABS# 115, located at the intersection of Snider Lane and East Lucas Road consisting of 
116 lots.  
 
 







Lakeview Downs



Item No. 03 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Request 

June 14, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by Cliff Gillespie on behalf of Lucas Village I, LLC for final plat approval 
for Lot 1, Block A of the Lucas Plaza Addition located at 501 Angel Parkway. 
 
Background Information  
 
This site has an approved site plan, specific use permit and preliminary plat. The site is 1.26 
acres zoned Commercial Business. The plat is not ready for approval as public improvements are 
incomplete. Should the applicant complete the public improvements before the June 14, 2018 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, staff would be in favor of the final plat as presented.  
      
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Final Plat  
2. Location Map 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
N/A 

Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the final plat as presented provided public improvements are 
completed prior to the meeting.   
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the final plat of Lucas Village I, LLC, for Lot 1, Block A of the 
Lucas Plaza Addition located at 501 Angel Parkway. 
 
 





McGarity Lane

An
ge

l P
ar

kw
ay

 S

Lucas Plaza 
Location Map



Item No. 04 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

June 14, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by Jacobs Engineering Group on behalf of Saint Paul Inspiration LLC for 
approval of a preliminary plat for a tract of land being part of the L. Farmer Survey ABS# 334, 
and the O. Shelby Survey ABS# 799 being 115.25 acres in the City of Lucas ETJ creating 296 
lots.  
 
Background Information  
 
This project is located within the City of Lucas ETJ and has both an approved development 
agreement and an approved concept plan. This project is part of a Municipal Utility District that 
supplies sewer and water service for this project. The City of Lucas does not review the 
construction plans or inspect any civil infrastructure for this project. The City’s only 
responsibility is plat approval.  
 
The preliminary plat is for Inspiration Phases 7 and 8a. The plat consists of 296 lots, 289 are 
residential lots. The lots vary in size from 8,000 square feet on the southern end to 10,000 square 
feet on the northern end of the subdivision. The City does not have the authority to enforce 
density in the ETJ. These lots conform to both the approved development agreement and the 
approved concept plan. The plat conforms to the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Preliminary Plat 
2. Location Map 
3. Concept plans  

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
NA 
 
Recommendation  
Staff recommends approval as presented. 
 
Motion  
I make a motion to approve/deny the request the preliminary plat on behalf of Saint Paul Inspiration 
LLC for a tract of land being part of the L. Farmer Survey ABS# 334, and the O. Shelby Survey 
ABS# 799 being 115.25 acres in the City of Lucas ETJ creating 296 lots.  
 



0 300150 600

PRELIMINARY  PLAT

INSPIRATION
PHASE 7 & 8A

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

IN
SP

IR
A

T
IO

N
 P

H
A

SE
 7

 &
 8

A

”

”
“ ”

” “ ”

”
“ ”

”
“ ”

”
“ ”

”
“ ”

“ ”

”

”
“ ”

”



INSPIRATION
PHASE 7 & 8A

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

IN
SP

IR
A

T
IO

N
 P

H
A

SE
 7

 &
 8

A

0 10050 200

PRELIMINARY PLAT



INSPIRATION
PHASE 7 & 8A

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

IN
SP

IR
A

T
IO

N
 P

H
A

SE
 7

 &
 8

A

0 10050 200

PRELIMINARY PLAT



Osage Lane

INSPIRATION
Phase 7 & 8A



Original Lot Design for Inspiration



ETJ Areas Identified 



Inspiration Plan for Development 


	00 - 6-14-18 Regular Agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	Planning and Zoning Commission
	June 14, 2018
	7:00 PM
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas – 75002
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Planning and Zoning Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 14, 2018 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As...
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The Planning and Zoning Commission may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.
	Certification



	01 - Minutes cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	01a - 04-12-2018 minutes
	City of Lucas
	Planning and Zoning Commission
	Regular Meeting
	April 12, 2018
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – 665 Country Club Road – Lucas. Texas
	MINUTES

	02 - Lakeview Downs CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02a - Lakeview Downs Final Plat
	02b - Lakeview Downs Location Map
	Slide Number 1

	03 - Lucas  plaza Final Plat CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - LucasPlazaLAdditionFinalPlat
	03b - Lucas Plaza Location Map
	Slide Number 1

	04 - Inspiration Preliminary plat CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	04a - Inspiration Prelim Plat Ph 7 and 8A
	Sheets and Views
	Land Study
	PP Lucas 1
	PP Lucas 2


	04b - Inspiration Phase 7 & 8 Location Map
	Slide Number 1

	04c - Concept plans for Inspiration



